
222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

Planning Committee Agenda
Wednesday, 20 September 2017 at 6.00 pm
Council Chamber, Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place, Hastings, TN34 3UY.

Please enter the building via the Tourist Information Centre entrance.

For further information, please contact Emily Horne on 01424 451719 or email: 
ehorne@hastings.gov.uk

Page No.

1.  Apologies for Absence
2.  Declarations of Interest
3.  Notification of any additional urgent items
4.  Planning Applications:

(a)  Public Conveniences, Harold Place, Hastings 1 - 8

(Miss S Roots – Principal Planner) 

http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_H
STBC_DCAPR_105000
 

5.  Planning Appeals and Delegated Decisions 9 - 10

(a)
(b)

Public Document Pack

http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_105000
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_105000
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_105000


This page is intentionally left blank



Public Conveniences
Harold Place
Hastings
TN34 1JA

Demolish the existing redundant local authority public convenience roof
and superstructure complete down to ground floor slab level and finish
the resulting flat pedestrian area with pre-cast concrete paving slabs
with an appearance complimentary to the surrounding pedestrianised
town centre surface finishes. The existing basement level service
directly void beneath the superstructure is to be retained.

HASTINGS

9 8

3

5

6

1

7

2a

4

PH

Hall

Bank

(PH)

Shingle

Central

Telephone

Cinema

The Carlisle

Exchange

11

York Buildings

Qu
ee

ns
 Av

en
ue

Robertson Street

Ba
nk

 B
uil

din
gs

6a

59

10

14

53 58 61

27

15

31

21

1a

13

25
26

1257

5a
24

60

29

43

17

47

37
35

16

23

52

33

Road

House

LB

Thrift

211

27b

207
208

52b

20543a

212
210

Homedane HouseQueens Apartments

PC

Mean High Water

Posts

1 to 3

1 to 7

TCB

Subway

TCBs

Church

Risin
g

Shelter

51d

54 to 56

18 to 21

34 to 69

El Sub Sta

Albany Court

7

9

3

Shelter

9

El Sub Sta

10

PH
2

14

2

TCBs

7

8

PH

El Sub Sta

5

6

1 Shelter

1

PH

5

2

6

5

PH

13

4

4

16

6
87

8

3

4

27
1

4

7

11

Shelter

PL
AC

E

TERRACE

QUEENS ROAD

ALBERT ROAD

HAROLD PLACE

CARLISLE PARADE

DENMARK PLACE

WELLINGTON PLACE

YORK GARDENS

PELHAM STREET

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

September 2017

HS/FA/17/00651
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

Page 1

Agenda Item 4a



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM NO: 6 (a)

Report to: PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 20 September 2017

Report from: Assistant Director of Housing and Built
Environment

Application Address: Public Conveniences, Harold Place,
Hastings, TN34 1JA

Proposal: Demolish the existing redundant local
authority public convenience roof and
superstructure complete down to ground
floor slab level and finish the resulting flat
pedestrian area with pre-cast concrete
paving slabs with an appearance
complementary to the surrounding
pedestrianised town centre surface
finishes. The existing basement level
service directly void beneath the
superstructure is to be retained.

Application No: HS/FA/17/00651

Recommendation: Grant Full Planning Permission

Ward: CASTLE
Conservation Area: No
Listed Building: No

Applicant: Hastings Borough Council Muriel Matters
House Breeds Place  Hastings TN34 3UY

Interest: Freeholder/Leaseholder

Existing Use: Public toilet (closed)

Public Consultation
Site Notice: Yes
Press Advertisement: No
Letters of Objection: 0
Petitions of Objection Received: 0
Letters of Support: 0
Petitions of Support Received: 0
Neutral comments received 0

Application Status:                              Not delegated - Council Application

Page 3



1. Site and Surrounding Area

The site comprises a toilet block within Hastings Town Centre, closed to members of the
public in April 2017.  The toilet block does not form part of the retail frontage given its former
use and recessed positioning on the edge of Wellington Place pedestrian area with Harold
Place running to the west.  It is sited central to a thoroughfare leading from the town centre
shopping area towards the underpass that leads to Hastings beach.

The toilet block lies just outside the Town Centre Conservation Area which wraps around the
site to the north, east and west.  Given this close proximity, the building sits within the setting
of the conservation area.  It should be noted that the conservation area boundary is currently
under review and that there is a proposal to extend the area boundary to include the site that
is the subject of this application within the conservation area, although this has not been
formalised at the date of writing this report.

There are no listed buildings immediately abutting the site.  The nearest listed buildings are
at Carlisle Parade underground car park, the Havelock public house in Havelock Road and
York Buildings, although the works to the toilet block are not considered to affect the setting
of any of these buildings.

Constraints
Area affected by groundwater flooding
Area affected by surface water flooding
Archaeological Notification Area
Buffer zone of a conservation area
Flood zone 2 and 3
SSSI Impact Risk Zone

2. Proposed development

Demolition of existing toilet block (250sqm) down to ground floor slab level, and finish with
pre-cast concrete paving slabs. The existing basement level void is to be retained. 

The application is supported by the following documents:

Design and access statement
Site waste management plan
Heritage statement
Demolition method statement

Relevant Planning History

No relevant planning history

Page 4



National and Local Policies

Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy (2014)

Policy FA2 - Strategic Policy for Central Area
Policy FA3 - Strategy for Hastings Town Centre
Policy SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
Policy SC7 - Flood Risk
Policy EN1 - Built and Historic Environment

Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan (2015)

Policy LP1 - Considering planning applications
Policy DM1 - Design Principles
Policy HN1 - Development affecting the significance and setting of designated heritage
assets (including conservation areas)
Policy HN4 - Development affecting heritage assets with archaeological and historic interest
of potential interest

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

The NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Para 14 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and states that
development proposals which accord with the development plan should be approved without
delay.

Three dimensions of sustain ability given in paragraph 7 are to be sought jointly: economic
(by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and at the
right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high quality
environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting
and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 10 advises that plans
and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to the different
opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.

3. Consultation comments

Conservation officer - no objection
Does not consider the toilet block to be of particular historical or architectural interest nor
does it make a positive contribution to the setting of the conservation area. Its removal will
have an advantage in opening up views to the coast and revealing more of the historic
buildings in the conservation area.

County Archaeologist - no objection
Does not believe that any significant below ground archaeological remains are likely to be
affected by these proposals

Given that this is an application for demolition of premises, and no replacement building is
proposed, it is not necessary to consult the Environment Agency or the lead local flood
authority in respect of the site's location in a flood zone.  Building Control are aware of the
intention to demolish and have issued a Section 81 Notice.

Page 5



4. Representations

No letters of representation have been received following the display of a site notice.

5. Determining Issues

The main issue to be considered is the impact of the demolition on the character and
appearance of the area, and whether the remediation works will positively contribute to the
streetscene.

a) Principle

The site is in a sustainable location and the application is therefore in accordance with policy
LP1 Hastings Local Plan - Development Management (2015) in this respect and acceptable
in principle subject to other local plan policies.

b) Impact on character and appearance of area

Whilst the application site is not currently located in a conservation area, its close proximity
to the Town Centre Conservation Area, and the likelihood of the Conservation Area Review
including it, means that heritage issues are still a key consideration.

The existing toilet block is a modern utilitarian building, not considered to be of particular
historic or architectural interest.  It does not make any positive contribution to the setting of
the conservation area.  The removal of the building will have the advantage of opening up
conservation area views to the coast and also revealing more of some good quality historic
buildings in the conservation area.  Overall it is considered that the removal of this building
will have a positive impact on the setting of the Hastings Town Centre Conservation Area.
The submitted heritage statement shows an understanding of the significance of the asset
and demonstrates that the level of harm will be minimal. Policy HN1 of the Development
Management Plan is therefore complied with.

It is proposed to pave over the demolition site once the building has gone.  At the moment,
there is a mix of brick paving and concrete slab paving in the immediate vicinity of the site.
Subject to details being submitted that ensure appropriate paving and hard landscaping is
provided, it is considered that there will be no negative impact on the streetscene or
character and appearance of the area. Policy DM1 of the Development Management Plan is
therefore complied with.

c) Loss of use

The use provided a facility for memebers of the public, however this was closed in April
2017. There are other public conveniences in a short walking distance of the site. As such
the loss of the use is considered acceptable.

Page 6



6. Conclusion

The demolition of the toilet block will not cause harm to the character and appearance of the
area, or the setting of the surrounding conservation area. The proposals therefore comply
with the development plan in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 which states:

"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.

The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

7. Recommendation

Grant Full Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:

BG/P4/2/2A, 2B, BG/P4/2/3A, 3B

3. Prior to demolition commencing, samples of the proposed paving to be used
to cover over the site shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the works shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved paving samples.

4. No development above ground shall take place until full details of the hard
landscape works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved.
These details shall show how the new paving will fit into the wider context of
the paving patterns immediately abutting all sides of the site.

5. All hard landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details. 

Page 7



Reasons:

1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the
character and amenity of the area.

4. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the
character and amenity of the area.

5. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the
character and amenity of the area.

Notes to the Applicant

1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result
in enforcement action without further warning.

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Miss S Roots, Telephone 01424 783329

Background Papers
Application No: HS/FA/17/00651 including all letters and documents

Page 8



Agenda Item: 7

Report to: Planning Committee

Date: 20 September 2017

Report from: Planning Services Manager

Title of report: PLANNING APPEALS & DELEGATED DECISIONS

Purpose of report: To inform the Planning Committee of any planning appeals that 
have been lodged,  of any decisions received from the Planning 
Inspectorate and the number of delegated decisions made 
between 14 August to September 2017

Recommendations: That the report be noted

The following appeals have been received:

Address/
Application

Number

Proposal PSM’s 
Rec.

Where the 
decision was 

made

Type of 
Appeal

HS/FA/17/00216
1 Collinswood 
Drive, St 
Leonards-on-
sea, TN38 0NU

Single storey 
detached dwelling

Refuse 
Planning 
Permission

DELEGATED PLANNING

HS/FA/17/00075
77 The Ridge, 
Hastings, TN34 
2AB

Proposed new semi 
detached dwelling

Refuse 
Planning 
Permission

DELEGATED PLANNING

HS/TP/17/00249
19 Reedswood 
Road, St 
Leonards-on-
sea, TN38 8DN

Remove 4x 
Sycamores

Refuse 
Planning 
Permission

DELEGATED PLANNING

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



The following appeals have been dismissed:

Address/
Application

Number

Proposal PSM’s 
Rec.

Where the 
decision was 

made

Type of 
Appeal

HS/LB/16/00642
The Cupola, 
Belmont Road, 
Hastings, TN35 
5NR

Replacement of 
existing boundary 
fence (retrospective). 
Planning application 
HS/FA/16/00641 also 
applies

Refuse 
Planning 
Permission

DELEGATED PLANNING

HS/FA/16/00641
The Cupola, 
Belmont Road, 
Hastings, TN35 
5NR

Replacement of 
existing boundary 
fence (retrospective). 
Application for Listed 
Building consent 
HS/LB/16/00642 also 
applies

Refuse 
Planning 
Permission

DELEGATED PLANNING

HS/FA/16/00937
1A Hoads Wood 
Road, Hastings, 
TN34 2BJ

Proposed detached 
dwelling

Refuse 
Planning 
Permission

DELEGATED PLANNING

The following appeals have been allowed:

Nothing to report

Type of Delegated Decision Number of Decisions
Granted Permission 29
Prior Approval Not Required 1
Refused Permission 8
Withdrawn by Applicant 5

Background Papers:
Various correspondences with Planning Inspectorate

Report written by:
Courtney Dade – Tel: (01424) 783264

Email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk

Page 10


	Agenda
	4a Public Conveniences, Harold Place, Hastings
	HS-FA-17-00651 Public Conveniences Harold Place

	5 Planning Appeals and Delegated Decisions

